# THE BYE-LAWS OF THE

POLICE SECONDARY SCHOOL MINNA OLD STUDENTS ASSOCIATION

# (PSSMOSA)



	CONTENTS	
SECTION 1	NAME, NATURE AND ADDRESS	
SECTION 2	MOTTO AND LOGO	
SECTION 3	AIMS AND OBJECTIVES	
SECTION 4	ACTIVITIES	
SECTION 5	MEMBERSHIPAND PRIVILEDGES	
SECTION 6	MEETING AND CONGRESS	
SECTION 7	EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	
SECTION 8	FUNCTION AND POWERS OF	
	EXECTIVE OFFICERS	
SECTION 9	ELECTION OF EXECUTIVE	
	OFFICERS	
SECTION 10	COMMITTEES AND FUNCTIONS	
SECTION 11	INTERPRETATION OF THE	
	CONSITITUTION	
SECTION 12	VOTING AND BYE ELECTION	
SECTION 13	RESIGNATION AND	
	FOREFEITURE OF SEATS	
SECTION 14	DECISIONS	
SECTION 15	DISCIPLINE	
SECTION 16	FUNDING	
SECTION 17	DISSOLUTION OF THE	
	CABINET/EXCO	
SECTION 14	MISCELLANEOUS	
SECTION 19	AMMENDMENTS	
SECTION 20	INTERPRETATION OF LOGO	
SECTION 21	OATHS.	
SECTION 22	SCHOOL ATHEM/SONG	

# **PREAMBLE**

We the beneficiaries of Police Secondary School Minna have collectively resolved to establish an association constituting old students of the above stated Police Secondary School with the aim of maintaining, promoting the values and standards imbedded in the school and the Police in promoting academic excellence, national unity and harmony, peaceful co-existence and also to strengthen Police-society relationship resulting to a positive impact to the nation.

Conscious of the need to serve as ambassadors of the Nigeria Police, bearing in mind the immense contribution of the Police in the academic, moral and social up-bringing, we enact and give ourselves the following bye-laws.

#### **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

#### PART 1

## FEDERAL REPUBLIC OF NIGERIA (PSSMOSA BYE-LAW)

- **A.** This Bye-Law is supreme and its provisions shall have binding force on all authorities and persons throughout the Federal Republic of Nigeria.
- **B.** Police Secondary School Minna Old Students' Association shall not be governed, nor shall any person or group of persons take control of the government of PSSMOSA or any part thereof, except in accordance with the provisions of this bye-law.
- **C.** If any other law is inconsistent with the provisions of this bye-law, this bye-law shall prevail, and that other law shall to the extent of the inconsistency be void.

## **SECTION 1**

## NAME, NATURE AND ADDRESS

#### 1.1 NAME

The association shall be known and called "Police Secondary School Minna Old Students Association (PSSMOSA), the National body for all Ex-students of Police Secondary School Minna.

#### 1.2 IDENTITY

NATURE – PSSMOSA is a non-political, non-profit, Ex-student-run, independent, association. It is comprised of Ex-students and recent graduates of Police Secondary School Minna who are interested in promoting and development of the school. PSSMOSA does not discriminate on the basis of race, colour, sex, creed, religion, national or ethnical origin.

#### 1.3 ADDRESS

The address of the association shall be, Police Secondary School Minna Old Students Association, c/o Police Secondary School, P.O. Box 178 Minna, Niger State. It may be relocated to any other address in the country by a decision of the Executive Body (EB) as provided by the constitution.

## **SECTION 2**

## **MOTTO AND LOGO**

#### 2.1 MOTTO

The Motto of the association shall be; "TOWARDS GREATER HEIGHTS" which is simply the daily bread of the association, by repositioning the Police Secondary School Minna in line with the effectiveness and positivity of the Nigerian Police Force for a better society.

## 2.2 LOGO/EMBLEM

Refer to Section 20: Interpretation of Logo

## A AIMS AND OBJECTIVES

The aims and objectives of the association shall be as follows;

- 1 To harness every available resource to promote quality academic pursuit for the purpose of high academic excellence in School.
- To foster greater unity among all Ex-students and Police Secondary School Minna, by bridging any gap that has existed among them through various academic programmes and social activities.
- To encourage, organize, plan and execute programmes that would contribute immensely in the buildup of trustworthy future leaders of our nation.
- To assist in every possible way in the maintenance and development of Police Secondary School Minna.
- To educate students of higher institutions on the relevance of the police force in order to strengthen the relationship of the students toward the Police Force through our various chapters in the higher institutions.
- To encourage a stronger and better relationship that exists between the Nigeria Police and the wider society.
- 7 To contribute in the shunning of violent activities and cultism in our various institutions of learning.
- 8 To promote unity and speak unequivocally against any form of human oppression, victimization, indiscipline or misconduct without fear or favour.
- **9** To publish the association's journal as the case may be.
- To lead a good and exemplary profile amongst students and seek support from the Police Force and other organisations.
- 11 To be good ambassadors of the Nigerian Police Force anywhere we find ourselves.
- 12 It shall also be the duty and responsibility of the Association to assist the Police in its course of crime prevention and security consciousness.

#### B PHILOSOPHY

- 1 VALUES Belief in mutual respect for cultures and equality for people.
- 2 VISION Peace and fulfillment of mankind's potential.
- 3 PURPOSE To contribute to the development of all Police Secondary School Minna and Students with an overriding commitment to understanding and cooperation as well as the country at large.
- 4 MEANS Creating opportunities for exposure and interaction between young people of different cultures. Assisting people in acquiring skills and knowledge through

management, education and practical experience. Offering people the opportunity to interact with their social and economic environment.

## **SECTION 4**

## **ACTIVITIES**

- 1 Seminars, debates, symposia, sporting activities, conferences, summits and social activities.
- **2** Excursion to all Police Secondary Schools, Police Force Headquarters Abuja, Zonal commands, state commands and other stake holders.
- Giving of awards to ex-commandants, Vice Principals (Administration and Academics), both ex-staffs and present staff(s) of the school and also distinguished personal both in and out of the Police community who have left landmarks and legacies in the area of service.
- 4 Publication of journals as the case may be.

#### **SECTION 5**

## **MEMBERSHIP AND PRIVILEDGES**

## A MEMBERSHIP

The following are membership guidelines for persons aspiring to become members of the Police Secondary School Minna Old Students' Association (PSSMOSA).

There are four (4) categories of membership namely:

- 1. Corporate Member,
- 2. Graduate Member,
- 3. Affiliate
- 4. Student Member.

## 1. CORPORATE MEMBER

A Corporate member is eligible to all privileges of a member as prescribed by the Association and is eligible to vote at the AGM and can aspire to any position in the Association in line with the conditions as prescribed by Executive Council/Trustees.

#### 2. GRADUATE MEMBER

Person must have undergone a regular course of study in a recognized higher institution or who are holders of correct and adequate basic academic qualifications approved by the Executive Council/Trustees and completed such a course successfully. The Graduate Member can vote at the AGM and can aspire to any position of office if the member had acquired a minimum of four (4) years post-graduation experience.

#### 3. AFFILIATE MEMBER

Honorary Member

Any person who, despite not being a Police Secondary School Minna alumnus, has shown interest in the affairs of Police Secondary school Minna or has rendered assistance in the prospection of Public works, Police Schools and the Association may be considered by the Executive Committee for admission as an Honorary Member. The person must be of impeachable moral character and proven to have the interest of the Association at heart. The Affiliate Member can enjoy some membership benefits but can neither vote nor aspire to any position of office.

#### 4. STUDENT MEMBER

A Student Member shall be a person who graduated from Police Secondary School Minna or is undergoing a course of study in a recognized higher institution. The Student Member can vote at the AGM but cannot aspire to any position of office in the Association until he/she becomes a Graduate or Corporate Member.

#### B MEMBERS BENEFITS

#### **Benevolent Fund**

The Association maintains a benevolent fund to which individual members can contribute. The fund is set aside to help members who may find themselves in unforeseen distressful circumstances as well as other charitable purposes.

#### Careers and Employment Advice

The Association provides advice to members on job placement and career progression through her Job placement unit. The unit maintains a list of members wishing to change jobs or in search of jobs, and also match jobs opportunities by its job listing.

## Courses/Workshops/Conference

The Association offer courses and workshops regularly for professional improvement and continuing education of members. These courses/workshops are coordinated and organized nation-wide through Chapters, Branches and Class of the Association

The Association intends to hold Conference every year and in the nearest possible future, an international conference every two years. The theme of every Conference would be chosen based on contemporary issues and a communiqué issued at the end of proceedings.

## **Advisory services**

The Association provides guidance to members on a wide range of matters relevant to their involvements with and development of their profession.

#### **Forum**

The Association provides a forum for members to exchange ideas and update their knowledge on contemporary and future developments in PSSM

## **Awards and Prizes**

Grants/Awards and Prizes for outstanding members and other contributions to the Association are awarded by the Association from time to time to those who distinguished themselves in the Association.

## **Competitions**

The Association sponsors and encourages competitions at all levels, secondary schools through Universities to Professional.

#### **Code of Ethics**

The Association has established a Code of Conduct to control the conduct of her members. Disciplinary actions are instituted under this code.

## C PARTONS

The Association shall have a grand patron/matron, chief patron/matron, patrons and matrons.

- The Association shall determine who shall be the Grand Patron/Matron, Chief Patron/Matron of the Association.
- 2 Patrons and Matrons shall also be appointed upon nomination by the Association or any member of the Association.

## NOTE:

- (i) Any member not complying with sections and polices of the Association or not performing reasonable activities consistently forfeit its membership.
- (ii) After consideration of the relevant facts, members of the EXCOs may propose the expulsion or removal of the membership of that person.
- (iii) Expulsion or removal of a member shall only be valid upon two-thirds (2/3) majority decision of the full members of the EXCOs. No member shall be expelled except upon eight weeks notice from PSSMOSA by registered mail specifying the ground upon which expulsion is based and after giving such member the opportunity to be heard at the meeting.
- (iv) Any member may resign at any time by giving a four (4) weeks' notice to be delivered in writing to the EXCOs which shall inform the legislative congress of members.
- (v) A member who resigns or is expelled shall forfeit the right to any part of the assets of the Association in possession.

#### **MEETINGS AND CONGRESS**

Members admitted to full membership shall together constitute the legislative congress of members of PSSMOSA, which comes together with the occasion of the Association's Annual National Congress (ANC) and the Presidents' Meeting. Additional sessions of the National Congress may be convened on request of at least two-thirds of the Association's full members.

- (1) The executive committee shall meet when necessary for effective and efficient administration of the association.
- (2) The executive committee shall invite members of any committee set up or any member of the association to such meeting whenever necessary but shall not have voting rights in such meetings.
- (3) Two third (2/3) majority of the members of the executive committee shall form a quorum of such meetings.
- (4) The president shall not vote, except where there is a tie.
- (5) The Congress shall be the supreme authority on all matters affecting the association.
- (6) A notice for congress to convene shall be served not less than 21 DAYS to the date of the congress meeting.
- (7) The power to convene congress shall rest with the president of the association, or in his absence, the vice-president, or in the absence of both, the secretary-general with due consultation in any case with the three Excos.
- (8) The congress shall discuss, adopt or reject proposals, reports, and financial statements of the outgoing executive committee.
- (9) Emergency meetings shall be called at the instance of the president in conjunction with the Secretary General of the association.
  - (i) No other issue shall be discussed apart from that for which the meeting was summoned.
  - (ii) 2/3 majority of members of the association shall form a quorum at emergency meetings.
  - (iii) The legislative meeting of members shall have all powers for the performance and execution of the purposes of the Association.
  - (iv) Any appropriate question or business may be brought before the legislative congress of members without prior notice thereof.
  - (v) Legislative congress shall validly be held if at least two-thirds of the Association's full members are present or represented by proxy.
  - (vi) Only full members shall be entitled to vote at legislative meetings. Each full member shall be entitled to only one vote.

- (vii) A full member may be represented at the legislative congress by another full member but no member shall hold two proxies.
- (viii) The decisions of the legislative congress shall be carried by a simple majority vote of all full members present or represented, except if the Constitution or Standing Orders provide otherwise.

## **EXECUTIVES OFFICERS**

The Association shall be administered by an Executive Body (EB) consisting of a President/Vice Presidents, 3 – 5 Directors/Deputies and Unit Representatives as required (all physical persons).

- (1) Members of the EB shall be elected at the Annual National Congress by a simple majority vote of the Association's full membership. The term of office shall be **FOUR (4) YEARS.**
- (2) They can be re-elected but shall not serve for more than two (2) consecutive terms.
- (3) Within the EB each member shall have one vote. A majority of the members of the EB shall constitute a quorum.
- (4) Decisions shall be taken by a simple majority vote of the EB members present.
- (5) That the EB shall have full power of management and administration, subject to the prerogatives of the legislative congress.
- (6) The EB shall delegate the day-to-day management of this Association to the President and the affairs of the Secretariat to the Secretary-General.
- (7) All the deeds/activities committing the Association shall, except for special proxies, be signed by two members of the EB.
- (8) The Executive officers shall comprise:

S/N	DESIGNATION
1.	President
2.	Vice President - NORTH
3.	Vice President - SOUTH
4.	Secretary General
5.	Asst. Sec. General
6.	Treasurer
7.	Financial Secretary
8.	Dir. Event/Planning
9.	Public Relations Officer - NORTH
10.	Asst. PRO - NORTH
11.	Public Relations Officer- SOUTH

II-		
12.	Asst. Public Relations - SOUTH	
13.	Manager Event/Planning – NORTH	
14.	Manager Event/Planning - SOUTH	
15.	Manager Welfare - NORTH	
16.	Manager Welfare - SOUTH	
17.	Manager media/Publicity - NORTH	
18.	Manager Media/Publicity - SOUTH	
19.	Advisory Council	
20.	Advisory Council	
21.	Observatory Council	
22.	Observatory Council	

## (9) The executive shall;

- (i) Be responsible for the execution of the policies and programmes and the day to day administration of the Association.
- (ii) Be the Chief decision-making organ of the Association.
- (iii) In conjunction with congress appoint the auditors and discipline any officer(s) or members of the Association.
- (iv) Delegate any duty which is in line with the aims and objectives of the Association to any member(s) to perform on its behalf.

## **SECTION 8**

## **FUNCTIONS AND POWERS OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS**

## 8.1 THE PRESIDENT;

The President of PSSMOSA shall be responsible for carrying out the decisions of the legislative congress and for coordinating the work of the PSSMOSA.

He/She shall:-

- (i) Be the chief executive and spokesman of the Association.
- (ii) Co-ordinate all the activities of other members of the executive council.
- (iii) Ensure proper pursuit of goals and implementation of the policies and programmes of the Association.
- (iv) Be a signatory to the Association's account.
- (v) Have the casting vote should there be a tie in any voting.
- (vi) Have the power to summon any meeting through the secretary.

- (vii) Accountable to the congress for any form of irregularities emanating from his/her office and must conduct himself/herself in a general manner befitting a president of the Association.
- (viii) Perform other duties as may be delegated by the executive council or congress.
- (ix) He shall report to the congress any executive officer(s) for misconduct.
- (x) Shall have the power to order the review of the constitution from time to time in consultation with the congress.

## 8.2 **VICE PRESIDENT**;

He/She shall:-

- (i) Assist the president in his/her duties.
- (ii) Deputize for the president during his absence.
- (iii) Perform any other duty as may be directed by the executive congress.

# 8.3 <u>SECRETARY - GENERAL</u>

He/She shall:-

- (i) Head the secretariat.
- (ii) Keep the minutes of all meetings.
- (iii) In consultation with the president, summon all meetings.
- (iv) Responsible for all correspondence of the Association.
- (v) Be a signatory to the Association account.
- (vi) By the order of the president, he/she shall read the BYE-LAWS to the executive on assumption of office.

## 8.4 ASSISTANT SECRETARY - GENERAL

He/She shall:-

- (i) Assist the Secretary General and act in his/her absence.
- (ii) Perform other duties that may be assigned by the executive or congress.

## 8.5 **HEAD OF TREASURY**

He/She shall:-

- (i) Maintain the Bank Account(s) of the Association.
- (ii) Receive from the financial secretary all monies due to the association and bank same within forty-eight (48) hours of collection.
- (iii) Be a signatory to the Association account(s).
- (iv) Render statements of account within a week of notice by the executive committee or congress.
- (v) Co-operate with the audit committee to achieve its aim.
- (vi) Issue receipts of Monies (cash/cheque) and update the association books.
- (vii) Be responsible to the executive/congress of the Association.

(viii) Perform other duties as may be assigned by the executive or congress.

## 8.6 FINANCIAL SECRETARY

He/She shall:-

- (i) Collect registration fees, periodical contribution and all other monies due to the Association and deposit same with the treasurer within twenty four (24) hours of receipt.
- (ii) Shall submit his/her records and render a periodical written statement of account to the executive committee and congress meeting of the association on request.
- (iii) Keep an up to date account of money collected in properly kept record book.
- (iv) Remind every ordinary member of his/her arrears and current payments.
- (v) Shall present on demand all receipts and financial records for auditing.

# 8.7 DIRECTOR PUBLIC RELATIONS

He/She shall:-

- (i) Be the image maker of the Association and ensure that the Association with activities of other similar organization both within and outside the country.
- (ii) Ensure cross-fertilization of knowledge and ideas by acquainting the Association with activities of other similar organization both within and outside the country.
- (iii) Performing any other duty as may be assigned to him/her by the executive.
- (iv) Make release of the decision of the executive to the congress.

## 8.8 DEPUTY DIRECTOR PUBLIC RELATIONS

He/She shall:-

- (i) Assist the Director Public Relation officer and act in his/her absence.
- (ii) Perform any other duties that may be assigned by the executive or congress.

## 8.9 DIRECTOR EVENT/PLANNING (SOCIALS)

He/She shall:-

- (i) Promote and co-ordinate all the social activities of the Association.
- (ii) Submit annually to the Association executive all social activities for approval.
- (iii) Recommend to the executive committee social programme(s) to raise fund for the Association.
- (iv) Keep and maintain all property of the Association and inventory of same.
- (v) Perform any other duties that may be assigned to him/her by the executive/congress.
- (vi) He/She shall co-ordinate any social gathering.
- (vii) He shall be the M.C of any social gathering working in hand with the Dir. Public Relations (DPR)

## 8.10 DEPUTY DIRECTOR EVENT/PLANNING (SOCIALS)

He/She shall:-

(i) Assist the director Event/Planning (socials) in his or her absence.

(ii) Perform any other duties that may be assigned to him or her by the executive or congress.

## 8.11 <u>DIRECTOR MEDIA/PUBLICITY</u>

He/She shall:-

- (i) Expedite awareness and knowledge of the Associations programmes to the Excos and the society through the Director Public Relations as well as making the Association's Calendar of activities.
- (ii) Liaise with various media houses, as to go about enriching the activities of the Association to the society, hereby checkmating the capacity of the funding from the Association.
- (iii) He/She plus its units, should always work with the Event/planning units, to know about the contents and expectations of any given event.
- (iv) Design Catalogue's, calendars and souvenirs during events for the Association.
- (v) Responsible for actions within its units, also to relate decision/suggestions reached amongst its units to the Executive.

## 8.12 <u>DEPUTY DIRECTOR MEDIA/PUBLICITY</u>

He/She shall:-

- (i) Assist the Director in discharging of its duties, in the event of his absence.
- (ii) Also coordinate the affairs of its units, by relating to the units to the Executive.

## 8.13 **DIRECTOR WELFARE**

He/She shall:-

- (i) Coordinate the welfare of the Excos of the Association during or after any Events.
- (ii) Ensure to always liaise with the secretariat for information, concerning the Association's need etc.
- (iii) Managing of the Association's properties effectively and requesting of items were necessary through its Executive.
- (iv) Ensure Hospitality to avoid any circumstance that might lead to breakdown or slow pace of activities.
- (v) Relate with medical society as to have the relevant medical assistance needed for the Association during events.

## 8.14 <u>DEPUTY DIRECTOR WELFARE</u>

He/She shall:-

- (i) Assist the Director in his absence as the case warrants.
- (ii) To endeavor to checkmate the activities of the welfare units.
- (iii) Ensure to perform all other duties designated by the Executive.

## 8.15 PROVOST

He/She shall:-

- (i) Maintain order during any meeting of the Association.
- (ii) Make sure that members conform to the rules and regulations as laid down by the provision of the constitution.
- (iii) Be the Chairman of the disciplinary committee.

## 8.16 **PROVOST 2**

He/She shall:-

- (i) Assist the Provost 1 in his or her absence.
- (ii) Perform any other duties that may be assigned to him/her by the executive or congress.

## **SECTION 9**

## **ELECTION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS**

Elections into various offices or designations of officers, is expected to be carried out in a time frame of four (4) years interval. This would ensure a proper time frame for service delivery and mapping out of projects to be done and carried into the next government as the case may be. The procedure of electing of the officers should entail the following:-

- (i) They must meet specified conditions of offices.
- (ii) They must act in accordance with the code of conduct of the elections.
- (iii) They must be willing to accept the electoral body decision with good faith.
- (iv) They must show allegiance and respect for the constitution.
- (vi) They must have fortified themselves worthy Ambassadors of the Association.

## **SECTION 10**

## **COMMITTEES AND FUNCTIONS**

## 10.1 FINANCE COMMITTEE

This shall consist of the Head of Treasury, Financial Secretary and some non- officio members.

- (i) They shall monitor the movement of the Association's account.
- (ii) They shall advice the president on the financial aspect of the Association.
- (iii) Perform any other duties as may be assigned to them by the executive or congress.

## **FINANCES**

The revenues of the Association shall consist of members' fees, gifts and whatever other sources the Association may decide. The Association's financial responsibility shall be limited to assets and members shall not be liable personally.

The use of funds and book-keeping shall be governed by the Association's Financial Regulations. These regulations may be amended by a two-thirds majority vote at a legislative congress.

The financial year of the Association shall extend from 1<sup>st</sup> August to 31<sup>st</sup> of July annually. The EB shall submit the accounts of the closed financial year and the estimated budget for the following year for the approval by the legislative congress.

## 10.2 AUDIT COMMITTEE

- (i) The accounts of the Association and other financial transaction shall be audited by the Audit committee at least once in every three (3) months. Such committee members shall be elected or appointed by the congress.
- (ii) Members of the committee shall not hold any other office of the Association.
- (iii) All officers of the Association charged with financial responsibilities and/or keeping of financial records shall submit the sum to the audit committee for the purpose of auditing.
- (iv) The audit committee shall give its report to the congress.
- (v) The findings of the Audit committee shall be determined by the congress.

## 10.3 ADVISORY COMMITTEE

- (i) It shall be the Association's consultative body.
- (ii) The number and membership of the Advisory committee shall be determined by the congress.

## 10.4 **DISCIPLINARY COMMITTEE**

- (i) The committee shall determine all cases of misconduct and subversion against the Association indiscipline and breach of this bye-law leveled.
- (ii) Any member whose case is being considered shall be invited for hearing by the Disciplinary committee.

## 10.5 AD – HOC COMMITTEES

Shall be formed in conjunction with the ones mentioned above and shall be subject to the decisions of the executive/congress members of the Association irrespective of any case(s) that may call for such. Such committee shall submit its findings to the executive who shall with furtherance submit it to the congress for final approval. The committee shall be dissolved after submitting its findings.

#### **SECTION 11**

## INTERPRETATION OF THE CONSITITUTION

In the event of any question as to the interpretation of any of the provisions of the bye-laws, the question shall be referred to the bye-laws, the question shall be referred to the executive for determination and its decision shall be final and binding upon all members.

## **VOTING AND BYE - ELECTONS**

A bye – election shall be held to fill a vacant post within two (2) weeks of the post(s) being vacant except the vacancy falls within the last week of dissolution of the executive in which case a competent member(s) shall be assigned to handle the post being declared vacant.

## **SECTION 13**

## **RESIGNATION AND FORFEITURE OF SEATS**

- (i) Any resignation shall be made known to the Secretary General in writing within three (3) weeks' notice.
- (ii) An officer shall be removed from his/her post if found guilty of misdemeanor, irregularity arising from his/her office.
- (iii) Such removal shall be subject to the approval of 2/3 majority of the present at such meeting.
- (iv) Such an officer(s) shall return all the Association's property in his/her possession within forty eight (48) hours of resignation or removal from office.
- (v) No officer shall be removed without proper investigation and process as stated by the bye-laws.
- (vi) Any member of congress can raise a motion of impeachment against any member of the executive. Such an officer shall be given an opportunity to defend him/herself.

#### **SECTION 14**

## **DECISIONS**

- (i) Election results shall be announced immediately after voting.
- (ii) The election procedure shall be conducted and supervised by the Electoral committee headed by a returning officer. The electoral committee members shall be nominated by the congress.

#### **SECTION 15**

## **DISCIPLINE**

- (i) The decisions of the disciplinary committee shall be subject to the approval of 2/3 majority of the members of the congress.
- (ii) The president reserves the right to call on any member(s) to speak at the meetings.
- (iii) Any member of the Association who fails to pay his/her annual fee for two (2) consecutive years shall have all rights and privileges of the Association withdrawn with immediate effect.

## **FUNDINGS**

Details on how to fund the Association is left for the executive council and the congress to decide.

## SECTION17

## **DISSOLUTION OF THE CABINET/EXCO**

- (i) The executive shall not dissolve itself except 2/3 majority of the votes at the congress is in favour of such a dissolution.
- (ii) Any proposal regarding amendment to the BYE-LAWS or the Dissolution of the Association shall emanate from the EB or two of the Association's full members.
- (iii) The SG shall advise the members of the Association at least four weeks in advance of the date of the legislative congress of which deliberation on such a proposal is acted on. On this case an interim body must be put in place.

#### **SECTION 18**

# **MISCELLANEOUS**

## **CODE OF CONDUCT**

- (i) No member of the Association shall leave before adjournment without permission from the provost at any meeting of the Association.
- (ii) Any officer(s) who fails to comply with the provisions of this bye-law shall be suspended and be probed by the committee as provided in the bye-law. The removal of the officer(s) shall be determined by the findings of a committee.
- (iii) Members who fail to comply with the aims and objectives of the Association shall be subject to disciplinary action within the provision of this bye-law.

#### **SECTION 19**

## **AMENDMENTS**

19. This BYE-LAW shall be subject to Amendments upon a resolution passed by not less than 2/3 of the total number of the members of this Association present and voting at the general meeting. Any Amendment proposal to this bye-law must be sent to the secretary – general in writing at least a week before such meeting.

## **SECTION 20**

#### INTERPRETATION OF THE LOGO

- **20.** (1) **LOGO:** The association's logo comprises of a Lion, Shield, Flowers and the Dog The symbols thus represents:
- (a) LION: This simply represents the strength upon which the association is built, backed by the SHIELD of Honour, through which the Association defends its cause, amongst society.

- (b) FLOWERS: This stands for the interwoven relationship of the police community as well as its association with school.
- (c) DOG: As man's best friend it symbolizes extension of hand as a proof of the onward friendship towards greater heights.

## <u>OATS</u>

## 21.1 OATHS OF OFFICE OF THE PRESIDENT AND VICE PRESIDENTS

# 21.2 OATHS OF OFFICE OF THE EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

## 21.3 OATHS OF OFFICE OF THE COMMITTEE

## **GENERAL PROVISIONS**

Anything which is not provided for by the present bye-laws and in particular the publications to be made in the PSSMOSA Gazette shall be settled according to the provisions of the PSSMOSA Law of ......

The constitution was formulated in agreement of the under-listed members of the **CARE-TAKER COMMITTEE** for the aforementioned Association

# **PSSMOSA CARE-TAKER COMMITTEE MEMBERS**

NAMES	DESIGNATION	PHONE NOS.
GODWIN OMEIZA	President	
ENGR. EMMANUEL IBANGA	Vice President - NORTH	
ADEBUKOLA ADEDIGBA	Vice President - SOUTH	
DOUGLAS OKOJIE	Secretary General	
ENEMONA IBRAHIM	Asst. Sec. General	
esther oji amalimeh	Treasurer	
ABIGAIL MAJAK	Financial Secretary	
AARON KAURA	Dir. Event/Planning	
ABUBAKAR YARO	Public Relations Officer - NORTH	
GRACE ALEJI	Asst. PRO - NORTH	
VICTOR CHOJI	Public Relations Officer- SOUTH	
RAQUEL JACOBS	Asst. Public Relations - SOUTH	
CHRIS OJEBE EDACHE	Manager Event/Planning – NORTH	
	Manager Event/Planning - SOUTH	
HASSANA MAINA MUSA	Manager Welfare - NORTH	
VERONICA OBAOYE	Manager Welfare - SOUTH	
MAUREEN ONOCHIE	Manager media/Publicity - NORTH	
	Manager Media/Publicity - SOUTH	
	Advisory Council	
	Advisory Council	
	Observatory Council	
	Observatory Council	
	GODWIN OMEIZA  ENGR. EMMANUEL IBANGA  ADEBUKOLA ADEDIGBA  DOUGLAS OKOJIE  ENEMONA IBRAHIM  ESTHER OJI AMALIMEH  ABIGAIL MAJAK  AARON KAURA  ABUBAKAR YARO  GRACE ALEJI  VICTOR CHOJI  RAQUEL JACOBS  CHRIS OJEBE EDACHE  HASSANA MAINA MUSA  VERONICA OBAOYE	GODWIN OMEIZA  ENGR. EMMANUEL IBANGA  Vice President - NORTH  ADEBUKOLA ADEDIGBA  Vice President - SOUTH  DOUGLAS OKOJIE  ENEMONA IBRAHIM  Asst. Sec. General  ESTHER OJI AMALIMEH  Treasurer  ABIGAIL MAJAK  Financial Secretary  ARON KAURA  Dir. Event/Planning  ABUBAKAR YARO  Public Relations Officer - NORTH  VICTOR CHOJI  RAQUEL JACOBS  Asst. Public Relations - SOUTH  CHRIS OJEBE EDACHE  Manager Event/Planning - NORTH  WERONICA OBAOYE  Manager Welfare - NORTH  Manager Welfare - SOUTH  Manager Media/Publicity - NORTH  Manager Media/Publicity - SOUTH  Advisory Council  Observatory Council

# **SCHOOL ATHEM/SONG**

Come let us salute our model school
Our PSSM
In our school, we cherish discipline sincerely
Success is our goal
Ooooooh how will it please IG if we all become great
We have made up our minds to work hard
Now counting on Gods loving care and assistance

This shall be our watchword.

We shall reach our goal (2x)

# **BYE-LAWS FORMULATION COMMITTEE**

i. Emmanuel Ibanga - CHAIRMAN

ii. Enemona Ibrahim Emeje - SECRETARY

iii. Aaron Kaura - MEMBER

iv. Grace Aleji - MEMBER

v. Raquel Jacobs - MEMBER

This BYE-LAW was enacted on

Day ......Year .....



Dliabh'

President Secretary General

Ref/PSSMOSA/OCT/03/2015

